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There is a story
behind every change.

IS NOW

ELGL

It's no longer just about delivering air.
It's about delivering UPTIME™.

ELGi.. has evolved over the years from an Indian air compressor
manufacturing company to its acknowledged status today as a global
compressed air technology company. In tune with its global status and
continued aspiration to be a world leader ELGi.. rediscovers itself in a new
identity.

The revamped identity of ELGi. is constructed using bold, solid lines,
evoking a sense of security, solidity and the confidence of a global leader.
The primary colour 'graphite grey' signifies wisdom and prestige, with the
splash of 'vibrant orange' standing for innovation.

The sophisticated 'Forward Curve' element supports the identity of ELGi.
by implying the company is well ahead of the curve when compared to the
competition.

ELGiw has also adopted a new tagline, “AIR UP”, to signify the major role
they play in the air compressor systems market and to support their brand
positioning of “UPTIME™", whereby the focus is squarely on the customer,
to keep their entire operation, not just the air compressor, running.

UPTIME"

ASSURANCE



Dr. Jairam Varadaraj

Date : 1"Day of August, 2013 Dr. T. Balaji Naidu
Day : Thursday Dr. Ganesh Devaraj
Time : 430PM Mr. N. Mohan Nambiar

Mr. M. Ramprasad
Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj
Place : 'Ardra’ Mr. B. Vijayakumar

No.9, North Huzur Road, (Near Codissia Building)
Coimbatore - 641 018

Mr. S. Sriram

Mr. R. Syam Kumar

Book Closure dates: 20" July, 2013 to 1*August, 2013
(both days inclusive) M/s. RJC Associates
Chartered Accountants

Dr. G.L. Sankaran
Cost & Management Accountant

Central Bank of India

State Bank of India

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Elgi Industrial Complex,
Trichy Road, Singanallur
Coimbatore - 641 005
Phone :91-422-2589555
Fax :91-422-2573697
Website : www.elgi.com

Link Intime India Private Limited
Coimbatore Branch

“Surya” 35 Mayflower Avenue
(2nd Floor) Behind Senthil Nagar
Sowripalayam Road

Coimbatore - 641 028.
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Notice of the 53" Annual General Meeting

NOTICETO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 53rd Annual General Meeting
of the Shareholders of Elgi Equipments Limited will be held on
Thursday, the 1st Day of August, 2013 at 4.30 PM at 'ARDRA/,
No.9, North Huzur Road (Near Codissia Building),
Coimbatore - 18, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
financial yearended 31st March, 2013, the Balance Sheet as
at that date, the Report of the Board of Directors and the
Report of the Auditors.

. Todeclaredividend fortheyearended 31st March 2013.

To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. B. Vijayakumar
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. N. Mohan
Nambiar who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himselffor re-appointment.

Toappoint Auditors to hold office till the conclusion of next
Annual General Meeting and tofix their remuneration.

NOTES:

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A
PROXY SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORETHE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from 20th Day of July,
2013to TstDay of August, 2013 (both daysinclusive).

The dividend proposed to be declared at the meeting, will
be made payable on or before 26-08-2013 to those
members whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 20-07-2013.

Members holding shares in electronic form may please
note that as per the regulations of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
Limited (CDSL), the Company is obliged to print the details
on the dividend warrants as furnished by these
Depositories to the Company and the Company cannot
entertain any request for deletion/change of bank details

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

already printed on dividend warrants as per information
received from the concerned Depositories. In this regard,
Members should contact their Depository Participants (DP)
and furnish particulars of any changes desired by them.

Members are requested to notify immediately the change,
if any, in their residential address and bank accounts to the
Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent - M/s. Link
Intime India Pvt. Limited, Investor Relation Center,
"Surya", 35 May Flower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar,
Sowripalayam, Coimbatore-641028.

Members and / or their Proxies should bring the
Attendance Slips duly filled in for attending the meeting.

Members are requested to quote ledger folio numbersinall
correspondence with the Company.

Unclaimed Interim Dividend up to the financial year
2005-06 has been transferred to the Investor Education &
Protection Fund as notified by the Government.

Members who are having multiple accounts are requested
tointimate the Company, the ledger folios of such accounts
to enable the Company to consolidate all shareholdings
intooneaccount.

10) Members are requested to bring their personal copy of this

Annual Report to the Meeting.

11)Pursuant to the provisions of Section 109A of the

Companies Act, 1956, Members are requested to file
Nomination Forms in respect of their shareholdings. Any
Member wishing to avail this facility may submit to the
Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent the prescribed
Statutory (Form 2B). For any assistance Members shall get
in touch with the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent.

12)Members who have not received the Split Share

Certificates (Re.1/- face value) are requested to receive the
Split Share Certificates by surrendering their old Share
Certificates (.10/-face value) to the Company's Registrar &
Share Transfer Agentimmediately.
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ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTINGAGREEMENT

Asrequired under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement the particulars of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/reappointed at this

Meeting are given below:-

SI. No

Name

Qualification

Experience

Directorships in
other Public Limited

Companies incorporated
in India

Membership of
Committees in other
Public Limited
Companies
incorporated in India

Mr.B.Vijayakumar

B.Sc.

More than 26 years
experience as an
industrialist

G N o WU

. L.G. Balakrishnan &

Bros Ltd.
LGB Forge Ltd.

Super Spinning Mills
Ltd.

South Western Engg.
() Ltd.

Rolon Fine Blank Ltd.
LGB Rolon Chain Ltd.
LG Sports Ltd.

BCW V Tech India
Private Limited
(Subsidiary of

L.G. Balakrishnan &
Bros Ltd)

Renold Chain India
Private Limited
(Subsidiary of Renold
holding PLC)

Shareholders and
Investors Committee

Shareholders and
Investors Committee

Audit Committee

Mr.N. Mohan
Nambiar

B.A.(Eco.)

More than 40 years
experience as an
industrialist

. Lakshmi Apparels and

Wovens Ltd.

The Palaniandavar
Mills Ltd.

Adwaith Lakshmi
Industries Ltd.

Shareholders and
Investors Committee

Place :
Date :

Coimbatore
09/05/2013

By Order of the Board

For ELGIEQUIPMENTS LIMITED

R. SYAMKUMAR
Company Secretary
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The year under review was turbulent with global economic
uncertainty. The Company's performance affirmed the
strategy of keeping an eye on the future and at the same time
ring-fencing the present. The Company's performance in the
international markets contributed significantly to the top line

and ensured overall growth.

The Company has acquired during the year 100% stake in
Rotair SPA, Italy and Pattons Inc. USA. With these acquisitions
the Company has got access to new technologies, product
lines and well entrenched distribution and service systems
besides gaining a strong foothold in markets where it is not

currently present.

COMPRESSORS

The compressor business accounted for 83% of the total sales
of the Company. It accounts for 83% of the profits of the
Company and 87% of the capital employed. This business
presently employs 1688 people and grew by 15%.

PERFORMANCE

Domestic business remained stagnant through the year, with
marked growth during the end of the year. While the overall
business kept pace in line with the industrial activity in India,
the water well business picked up towards the end of the year.
After-market business grew significantly in line with the

Company'soverall strategy of service focus.

Sales of indigenously developed line of oil free compressors
launched during the previous year gained momentum and is
expected to contribute considerably in the future.

International business has grown well with significant
contribution from Middle East and Asian Countries. The
Company had maintained its level of business despite the
slowdown in industrial activity across China and the resultant
price pressure. However the growth has been sustained in
other South East Asian markets.

Considering the current economic conditions in other regions,
the focus is now on strengthening distribution, improving
sales productivity and getting prepared for the recovery.

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

OPPORTUNITIES

With the acquisition of businesses in US and Italy, Elgi has
established notable presence in the identified strategic
countries. Having successfully completed validation of the
products in these markets, the Company is poised for a
significant growth. Sale of compressors with life time
warranties in certain markets, is expected to influence product
sales as well as aftermarket business. Markets showing signs of
revivalin select segments promise growth potential.

THREATS

Though commodity prices are expected to remain stable, if the
economic recovery is not sustained, volatility in prices will tend
to erode margins. While cost reduction projects are constantly
being undertaken, any uptrend in prices cannot be recovered
intheinterim.

Developing international markets combined with the
integration of the acquired entities will be a challenge in the
shortterm.

ATS-ELGI

The automotive equipment business accounted for 13% of the
total sales of the Company. This business accounts for 16% of
the profits of the Company and 9% of the capital employed.
The business employs 369 people. This year the business has
grown by 11%.

PERFORMANCE

The performance of the business is tightly linked with the
performance of the automotive industry. Passenger car sales
growth was on a downward trend since the start of the
financial year except for a brief respite during October,
ultimately resulting in the first decline in annual car sales in a
decade. Consequently this resulted in an overall reduction in
activation of new dealerships and in turn reduced demand for
garage equipments. Despite the tough market conditions the
business grew due to increased market share in new garages,
increased revenue from otherindustry segments, introduction
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of new products and continuous expansion and focus on after
sales service. The business also expanded its range of
products and market share in the growing commercial
vehicles segment.

OPPORTUNITIES

The passenger car market growth is expected to be flat or
marginally higher in the year 2013-14 and the overall industry
sentiment continues to be weak. Growth opportunities forthe
business lies in workshop expansions by Original Equipments
Manufacturers (OEMs) who have entered the country in recent

years with theiraggressive new model launch plans.

Industry estimates suggest volume growth in commercial
vehicles would be driven by Light Commercial Vehicles which
mainly caters to intra-city movement of mostly goods and also
used as taxis in rural areas. Since the Company's thrust area is
this segment, the business will have a portfolio balance to

manage its business from the vagaries of the economy.

THREATS

While the factors such as fuel prices, interest rates and slow
growth rate remain as underlying threats, the industry is
plagued by high discounts, inventory and chronic over
capacity. Low demand coupled with a capacity overhang,
particularly in passenger vehicles and intensifying

competitionis likely to reduce industry operating margins.

OVERALL PERSPECTIVES

The global economy has yet to shake off the fallout from the
economic crisis. While the mature economies are slowly
healing and growing gradually, the upturn remains weak and
uneven. Though the projections indicate positive trends,
potential growth rates may be lower than the estimates.

The current state of economy in India remaining

unpredictable, indications suggest that macro conditions will

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

improve in the coming quarters. While the Company continue
toremain cautious, signs of improvement are foreseen in some
segments pointing to a better than average performance in

theensuingyear.

In the international markets the Company expects to improve
its performance sizably thus derisking the threat of

dependence on the domestic market.

The proposed foundry unit is nearing completion and
expected to start commercial production by the second
quarter of the ensuing financial year. Construction at the green
field site is under progress and expected to get completed by
theend of the financial year.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The process of communicating the ELGi's Vision and Values
was undertaken. Workshops to facilitate internalization of

Values are now underway, and will be an ongoing process.

To meet the demand for trained workforce in our greenfield
foundry, our first batch of workmen are being trained in
collaboration with PSG College of Technology.

The hiring challenges at our overseas locations have kept us
busy. In this connection, our attempt to use social media to
attracttalentis beginning to show results.

With our recent acquisitions in Europe and the USA, cross
culturallearning and the understanding of local laws, practices
and customs has become necessary, and we are making

progress.

An ombudsman committee has been established to address

internal grievances.
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Dear Shareholders,

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present the 53rd Annual Report of the Company along with the audited accounts for the year ended

31stMarch, 2013.

Financial results

The highlights of the performance of your Company during thefiscal are given hereunder;

(Z. In Million)

Dividend

For the financial year 2012-13, the Board of Directors had
recommended dividend of Z.1/- per share (100 %) on the paid
up share capital of %.15,84,54,508. Subject to the approval of
shareholders, an amount of %.185.38 Million will be paid as
dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax (previous year
2.184.16 Million).

Review of Operations

During the year under review, the Company recorded net sales
ofZ.8165 million as against .7948 million with anincrease of
3%. The details of division wise performance with other
operational details are discussed at length in the Management
Discussionand Analysis.

Subsidiary Companies

The Government of India vide its Circular No. 2/2011 dated
08/02/2011 granted general exemption under Section 212(8)
of the Companies Act, 1956, from attaching the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit & Loss and other documents of its
subsidiaries and hence the same have not been attached.
However the Financial Statements of ATS Elgi Limited, one of
the subsidiaries, is furnished with this report.

As required under the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges, Consolidated Financial Statements of the

Company and allits subsidiaries is attached. The Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the relevant Accounting Standards as prescribed under
Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956. A Statement
containing brief financial details of the Company's subsidiaries
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2013 isincluded in the
Annual Report.

The annual accounts of the subsidiaries and their related
detailed information will be made available to any member of
the Company/its subsidiaries seeking such information at any
point of time and are also available for inspection by any
member of the Company/ its subsidiaries at the registered
office of the Company.

FuturePlans
a. Domestic

The current state of economy in India remaining
unpredictable, indications suggest that macro conditions will
improve in the coming year. While the Company continues to
remain cautious, signs of improvement are foreseen in some
segments pointing to a better than average performance in
theensuingyear.

b. International

The Company achieved significant milestones during the year
by acquiring 100% stake in M/s. Rotair Spa, Italy and
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M/s. Patton’s Inc, USA. With these acquisitions, ELGI has
notable presence in the identified strategic markets. The
Company s poised for a significant growth.

Capital Expenditure and funding

The Capital Expenditure incurred and funded for the year is
%.847.45 Million, of which %. 289.12 Million pertain to plant and
machinery throughinternalaccruals.

Shareholderinitiatives

1. Your Company adheres strictly to all the statutory and
otherlegal compliances.

2. Your Company has in place regulations for preventing and
regulating insider trading and has adhered to a code of
conduct and business ethics by which the shareholder is
treated at par with an employee on availability of
information about the Company.

3. Your Company regularly intimates the shareholders
(through quarterly newsletters) on the performance of the
Company, eventhoughitis not mandatory.

4. Your Company has consistently paid dividend through out
theseyears.

5. Your Company has been prompt and regular in its replies
toyour queries received by them.

6. Your Company also replies within the stipulated time to all
legal and statutory authorities.

7. The custodial charges and listing fees promptly paid by
your Company to the depositories and stock exchanges.

8. During this year, the Company dematted 1,45,776 shares.
With this, the total number of shares dematted as on
31st March 2013 are 15,41,84,708 Shares which represent
97.31% of the shares of the Company.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any public deposits and as
such no amount on account of principal or interest on public
deposits was outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of
the Company Mr. B.Vijayakumar and Mr.N. Mohan Nambiar,
Directors of the Company retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. The Board recommends their reappointment
as Directors of your Company.

None of your retiring directors are disqualified from being
reappointed.

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Directors' Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors confirm

i. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. that the Directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimate that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period;

iii. that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and otherirregularities.

iv. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis.

Statutory Auditors and theirappointment

M/s. RJC Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory
Auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company. Your Board recommends their
reappointmentas the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Cost Auditor

Approval of the Government of India through the Ministry of
Company Affairs was granted for the appointment of
Dr. G.L. Sankaran as the Cost Auditor of your Company for the
financial yearended 31st March 2013.

Secretarial Audit

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Share
Capital Audit on a quarterly basis to reconcile the total
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) and the
totalissued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total
issued/paid up capital isin agreement with the total number of
sharesin physical form and the total number of dematerialised
shares held with NSDLand CDSL.

The Company has complied with all the provisions of listing
agreementinthe currentyear.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

The Company continues to enjoy cordial relations with its
employees at all levels. The total strength of employees
(including all Subsidiaries) ason 31st March, 2013 was 2057.

OtherInformation

The statement showing the particulars of technology
absorption pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies
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Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of Particularsin the
Report of Board of Directors)Rules, 1988, is given in the
Annexure forming part of this report.

The statement showing the particulars of names and other
particulars of employees pursuant to section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975, is given in the annexure forming part
of thisreport.

Corporate Governance

A Report on Corporate Governance together with Practising
Company Secretary's Certificate on compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is provided elsewhere in
the Annual Report.

Coimbatore
09/05/2013

Place :
Date

10
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Acknowledgements

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of
employees at all levels in maintaining the sustained growth of
your Company. Your Directors thank and express their
gratitude for the support and co-operation received from
Governments, stakeholders including analysts, producers,
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Forand on behalf of the Board

JAIRAMVARADARAJ
Managing Director
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Director
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Annexure to the Directors' Report

I. STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 217(1) (e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ
WITH COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS INTHE
REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 AND
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT.

A. Energy Conservation / Cost Saving activities carried out
fortheyear2012-13

As a measure of Energy Conservation/Cost Saving
Activities, the Company has made the following attempts
duringtheyear2012-13;

1.

Energy Audit was carried out by an external agency
and the saving proposals were executed.

. The Company had initiated " Energy Management

System" ISO 50001 : 2011 Certification Process to
optimize the energy cost of manufacturing processes.

. The Company is certified for ISO 14001:2004 Standards

and executed "Environment Management
Programme" for various manufacturing processes.

Introduced Solar lights in the main gangways to utilize
Natural resources (Solar energy).

Utilized "Endurance Testing Compressed Air" for the
plant by modifying the Plant Air Circuit Header lines.

Introduced High speed Diesel which improved the fuel
efficiency by 6% and savingsin Diesel Cost.

B. TechnologyAbsorption

1.

Research & Development

a) Developed Global Series oil-free two-stage screw
compressorsinthe powerrange of 90-315 kW.

b) Developed Global Series oil-free single-stage screw
compressors of power range 90-160 kW.

c¢) Developed oil-free 50 HP reciprocating
compressor.

d) Developed high pressure reciprocating
compressorfor Nuclear Power Corporation.

e) Developed electric powered 22 kW trolley mounted
screw compressor for marble mining segment.

11
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2. Technologyabsorption,adaptationandinnovation

a)

EXPENDITUREONR&D

Launched two-stage, high pressure skid mounted DS
1200-325 (diesel powered)compressor for water-well
segment, and very well received.

Received approval from Indian Railways for the
"Common Compressor" developed for 3-phase and
conventional locomotives.

Reciprocating compressor developed for GM
locomotives has been cleared by RDSO.

Electric powered Global Series screw compressor
(30-160 kW) and belt-driven Encap series screw
compressor (15-30 kW) entered production.

Air-oil separator tanks used in Global Series
compressors are certified for CEand ASME standards.

(Z.In Million)
2011-2012

2012-2013

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:

Particulars are given in the notes forming part of accounts.
Kindly refer the same.



ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Il. STATEMENT ANNEXED TO DIRECTORS' REPORT SHOWING THE NAMES AND OTHER PARTICULARS OF EVERY EMPLOYEE OF THE
COMPANY PURSUANT TO SECTION 217(2A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, READ WITH THE COMPANIES (PARTICULARS OF
EMPLOYEE) RULES 1975.

* Remuneration for part of the Financial Year 2012-13.

Note:
1. The nature of employment of Dr. Jairam Varadaraj, Managing Director of the Company is contractual.

2. Remuneration includes salary, allowances, contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, other taxable perquisites
and also performance linked pay paid during the year.

3. Dr. Jairam Varadaraj is related to Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj and Dr.T.Balaji Naidu as per Schedule IA of the Companies Act, 1956.

Forand on behalf of the Board

Place :  Coimbatore JAIRAMVARADARAJ N.MOHAN NAMBIAR
Date : 09/05/2013 Managing Director Director

12
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COMPANY'SPHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Elgi has always believed in and followed best business practices, and has been compliant with all the laws, exercised fairness and
integrity in all its dealings, thereby reiterated its commitment to enhancement of stakeholders' value. The Company has a defined set of
guidelines for its internal governance based on business ethics, legal compliance and professional conduct. The Company has been
following transparency in its accounting practices and procedures, in framing and adhering to policies and guidelines, in insisting on
responsibility and accountability and by regular audit of its policies and procedures;

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 7 Directors, out of which 4 are Independent Directors. Dr. Jairam Varadaraj is the
Executive Directorand all other Directors are Non-Executive Directors.

The Board met 6 times during the financial year on 14th May 2012, 6th August 2012, 29th August 2012, 02nd November 2012,
28th November 2012 and 25th January 2013. The composition and attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual
General Meeting held during theyearisasunder:-

# Excludesdirectorshipsin Private Companiesand Foreign Companies
$ Only Audit Committee and Investor Grievance Committee are considered.
Dr.Jairam Varadaraj isrelated to Mr. Sudarsan Varadarajand Dr.T.Balaji Naidu as per Schedule A of the Companies Act, 1956.

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent and have knowledge of finance, accounts and engineering industry. The
quorum for Audit Committee meeting is minimum of two Independent Directors.

Therole, powers and functions of the Audit Committee are as per section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the guidelines set outin
the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. The terms of reference of this Committee are as required by SEBI - under Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement. Besides having access to all the required information from within the Company, the Committee can obtain
external professional advice whenever required. The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the
Board of Directors of the Company. Itis authorized to select and establish accounting policies, review reports of the Statutory and the
Internal Auditors and meet with them to discuss their findings, suggestions, and other related matters. The Committee isempowered to
recommend the appointmentand remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors.

During the year under review, the Committee met four times on 14th May 2012, 6th August 2012, 2nd November 2012 and
25th January 2013.The Composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member of the Committee during the yearis
given below.
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The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Managing Director, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditor and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company have also attended the committee meetings. The Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were
circulated to the Board where it was discussed and taken note of. The Audit Committee considered and reviewed the accounts for the
year2012-13 beforeitwas placedinthe Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors, namely Mr. M. Ramprasad (Chairman), Dr. Ganesh Devaraj and
Mr. N.Mohan Nambiar.

This Committee would basically look into and determine the Company's policy on remuneration packages to the Managing Director.
During the year under review, the committee had met one time on 6th August 2012. Allthe members of the committee were presentin
the meeting.

The Managing Director is paid remuneration approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of Remuneration Committee.
The remuneration so approved is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the general meeting and such other authorities as the
case may be.

Dr. Jairam Varadaraj, Managing Director was paid remuneration of . 8.74 Million for the year ended 31st March, 2013 including %.1.44
Million towards Performance Pay. Hisappointmentis fora period of 5 years from 01/04/2011.

The Company does not pay remuneration to any of its Non-Executive Directors barring sitting fees for attending the meeting(s).

The details of the sitting fees paid during the yearended 31st March 2013 to the Non-Executive Directors are as under:

Statement showing number of Equity Shares held by the Non- Executive Directors as on March 31,2013 :-

There has been no materially relevant pecuniary transaction or relationship between the Company and its Non-Executive Independent
Directorsduring the year.

SHARE HOLDERS' COMMITTEE

This Committee was constituted with Mr.N.Mohan Nambiar as Chairman and Dr. Jairam Varadarajand Dr.Balaji Naidu as members.

Compliance Officer: Mr.S.Raveendar, Company Secretary was compliance officer up to 06/08/2012,and Mr.R.Syam Kumar, Company
Secretary took overon 06/08/2012.

The Committee deals in matters relating to transfer and Transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, review of
dematerialized shares, redressing of investors complaints such as non-receipt of shares, non-receipt of dividends etc., and other
matters related to shares.

The Share Transfers/ transmissions approved by the Committee are placed at the Board Meetings from time to time. During the year
ended 31stMarch 2013, 26 meetings of the Committee were held.

The total number of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the year ended on 31st March 2013 was
66.There were no outstanding complaintsason 31st March 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

GENERALBODY MEETINGS

Location and time forlast three AGMs held

Details of Special Resolutions passed at the last three Annual General Meetings.
(i) 50thAGMheld on6th December,2010

(a) Alteration of the Articles of Association by inserting new clauses relating to issue of bonus shares and issue of shares under
ESOP/ESPS Scheme.

(b) Alteration of the Capital clause of the Articles of Association.
(c) Authoritytoissue of Bonus Sharesin the ratio of one equity share for every one equity share held.

(d) Authorising the Board of Directors to issue and allot upto 1 Million Equity Shares of 2.1/- each under Employee Stock Purchase
Schemeto the employees of the Company.

(e) Authorising the Board of Directors toissue and allot upto 1 Million Equity Shares of Z.1/- each under Employee Stock Purchase
Schemeto the employees of the subsidiaries.

(f) Paymentofrevised remuneration from 1st April 2010to Dr. Jairam Varadaraj, Managing Director

An Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held on 29th July 2010 under the direction of the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Madras
and the shareholders have approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of M/s.Elgi Industrial Products Limited with the Company in terms of
Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 effective from 1st April 2009.

(ii) 51st AGMheld on29thJuly,2011

Dr. Jairam Varadaraj was reappointed as Managing Directorfora further period of 5years w.e.f. 01/04/2011.
(i) 52nd AGMheld on 06th August, 2012

No Special Resolution was passed during last Annual General Meeting.

No special resolutions were put through postal ballot during last year.
DISCLOSURES:

(i) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large.

Kindly refer to the notes forming part of accounts for the details of related party transactions. There are no materially significant
Related Party Transactions, which have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

(i) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
Statutory Authorities, on any matter relating to capital markets, during the last three years.

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges as well as regulations and
guidelines of SEBI. No Penalties have been levied or strictures have been passed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any other Statutory
Authority on matters relating to capital markets, in the last three years.

(iii) Whistle Blower policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Company conducts regular'employee meets' every quarter where all the employees have a chance to interact directly with the
Managing Director of the Company. Besides this the Managing Director is reachable via e-mail and landline. Any issue brought to
the attention of the management, whether resolved or not s placed before the Audit Committee forits perusal and comments.

(iv) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49.
The Company complies with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement including the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of

theagreement.
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The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements on Corporate Governance recommended under Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement.

1. Company hasaRemuneration Committee comprising of three Non-Executive Independent Directors.
2. Quarterlyresultsare being sent toall the members.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The same has
been posted on the website of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed their compliance
with the Code of Conduct fortheyearunderreview.

The Company's Managing Director's declaration to this effect forms part of this report.
Codeforprevention of Insider Trading

The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading based on SEBI (Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. This
code is applicable to all Directors / Officers / Designated Employees. The Code ensures the prevention of dealing in shares by persons
having access to unpublished price sensitive information.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Quarterly Results and Annual Results are published in newspapers viz. Business Line (all editions) and Dhinamani (Vernacular paper)
and simultaneously posted on the Company's web site (www.elgi.com). In addition to this, the Company has the practice of mailing
Quarterly Results to the Company's members and the members are also kept informed about important developments in the
Company. The presentations, ifany, made to Institutional Investors or to the Analysts are also posted on Company's website.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

53rd Annual General Meeting

DateandTime : 1st Day of August, 2013at 4.30PM

Venue . ARDRA, No-9 North Huzur Road
Coimbatore-641018.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Date of Book Closure : 20-07-2013t001-08-2013 (both days inclusive)
Dividend PaymentDate  : 26-08-2013

Listing of shares on Stock Exchanges

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1
Dalal Street, Fort G'Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Mumbai-400001 Bandra (Egst), Mumbai-400051
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Note:

Annual listing fees for the year 2013-14 were paid to Bombay Stock Exchange Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Vide
SEBI Order No. WTM/RKA/MRD/12/2013 dated 03.04.2013, Coimbatore Stock Exchange Ltd (CSX) ceased to be a Recognized Stock
Exchange.Hence nolisting agreement compliances are applicable with respect to CSX.

STOCKMARKET DATA

Stock Code-Z.1/-Fully Paid . 522074-Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
ELGIEQUIP - National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Stock Price Data: (%. 1/-fully paid up)
Forthe Period: April 2012 to March 2013

ELGI SHARE PRICE vs BSE SENSEX
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Categories of Shareholdersason31st March 2013

Distribution of Sharesason 31stMarch2013

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

| PROMOTERS

MUTUAL FUNDS

BODIES CORPORATE
J MARKET MAKERS

EMPLOYEES

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS/BANKS
Flls

mmmmm  NON-RESIDENT INDIANS

CLEARING MEMBERS
PUBLIC

Dematerialisation of Shares and liquidity

The Company has arrangement with National Securities Depository Ltd.
(NSDL) as well as Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for
dematfacility.

During the financial year 2012-13, 1,45,776 shares were dematted. As
on 31st March, 2013, out of 15,84,54,508 shares, total shares in demat
form is 15,41,84,708 shares and 42,69,800 shares in physical form. This
represents 97.31% shares of the Company are in demat form and 2.69%
shares are in physical form. The shares are compulsorily tradable in
demat form with effect from 26.6.2000 for all investors.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments
and theirlikelyimpact on equity.

There are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments. The
Company has notissued GDR/ADR.
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Registrarand Share Transfer Agents
(forboth physical and demat segments)

Head Office

Link Intime India Private Ltd
C-13,Pannalal Silk Mills Compound
L.B.S.Marg, Bhandup (west)
Mumbai400078
Tel:022-25963838

Fax:022-25946969
E-mail :isrl@intimespectrum.com

Branch:

Link Intime India Private Ltd

Coimbatore Branch

"Surya", 35, May Flower Avenue, (Il Floor)
Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road,
Coimbatore 641028
Tel:91-0422-2314792 & 2315792
Fax:91-0422-2314792

E-mail: coimbatore@linkintime.co.in

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

In order to facilitate investor servicing, the Company has designated an e-mail-id: investor@elgi.com mainly for registering complaints

by investors.

Share Transfer System

The Company's shares being in compulsory dematerialised (demat) list are transferable through the depository system. Shares in
physical form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited and approved by the Share
holderand Investor Grievance Committee of the Company. The Share transfers are processed within a period of 15 days from the date of
receipt of the transfer documents by Link Intime India Private Limited, if the documents are complete in all respects. All requests for
dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmed to the depositories NSDL and CDSL within 15 days. The Shareholder and
Investor Grievance Committee generally meets asand when required to effect the shares received for transfer in physical form.

ISIN number allotted for equity shares (. 1/-each) : INE285A01027

Plantlocations
1. ElgiEquipmentsLimited

ElgiIndustrial Complex
Trichy Road, Singanallur
Coimbatore-641005

2. PressureVesselDivision
1473, Trichy Road
Coimbatore-641018.

Correspondence address Compliance Officer's Details

R. Syam Kumar

Company Secretary
ElgiEquipmentsLtd

Elgilndustrial Complex

Trichy Road, Singanallur
Coimbatore-641005

e-mail :investor@elgi.com

Contact Nos. of Secretarial Department
91-422-2589136,2589187
Fax:91-422-2573697
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Declaration for Code of Conduct

| hereby affirm and state that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have given a declaration pursuant
to Clause 49(l) (D) of the Listing Agreement and | hereby affirm compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the Financial Year
2012-2013.

Place: Coimbatore JairamVaradaraj
Date: 09/05/2013 Managing Director

Report on Corporate Governance 31.03.2013

Certificate

Tothe Members of Elgi Equipments Limited,

| have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s Elgi Equipments Limited, for the year ended on March
31,2013 assstipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. Itis neitheran audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, | certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

| state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by
theInvestors'Relation Committee.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the managementhas conducted the affairs of the Company.

MD Selvaraj
Coimbatore Practicing Company Secretary
09/05/2013 C.P.No.: 411 (FCS.960)
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CONSOLIDATED

(Z. In Million)

Note:

2012-13 is strictly not comparable with previous years due to acquisition of companies viz Rotair Spa and Patton’s Inc during the course of the
year and to the extent of changes done as per the revised Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.
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CONSOLIDATED

Notes:

1. Turnover of the Companies acquired during the year is annualized for reckoning the Efficiency ratios.

2. 2012-13 is strictly not comparable with previous years due to acquisition of companies viz Rotair Spa and Patton’s Inc during the course of
the year and to the extent of changes done as per the revised Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED.

Reporton the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ELGI
EQUIPMENTS LIMITED("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheetas at March 31,2013, and the Statement of Profitand
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
("the Act"). This responsibility includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the
information required by the Actin the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally acceptedinIndia:

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013
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(@) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
CompanyasatMarch 31,2013

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the
yearended onthatdate;and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the
yearended onthatdate.

Reporton OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, as
amended by 'the Companies(Auditor's Report) (Amendment)
Order 2004' ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company
as we considered appropriate and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

8. Asrequiredbysection227(3) of the Act, wereport that:

(@). wehaveobtainedalltheinformation and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

(b). in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;[and proper returns adequate for
the purposes of our audit have been received from branches
notvisited by us];

(c). the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account [and with the returns received
from branches not visited by us];

(d). in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956;

(e). on the basis of written representations received from the
directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms
of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

(f).  Sincethe Central Government has notissued any notification
as to the rate at which the cess is to be paid under section
441A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any Rules
under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such
cessisto be paid, no cessis due and payable by the Company.

For RJC Associates
Regn. No.: 0034965
Chartered Accountants

R. Jayachandran
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 7 of our Report of even date to the members of ELGI
Equipments Limited on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanation given to us
during the course of our audit, we report that:

i. (a) The company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a
period, which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed assets has been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no substantial part of the fixed
assets have been disposed off during the year and
therefore does not affect the going concern
assumption.

ii. (@) The inventory has been physically verified by the
Management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verificationis reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in relation
to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

(c) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company is generally maintaining
proper records of its inventories. No material
discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of
stocks by the management as compared to book
records.

iii. (@) The Company has granted loan to companies covered
in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved
during the year was . 46.63 million and the year end
balance of loans granted to the Company was . 8.09
million.

(b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and
conditions on which loans have been granted to the
Company listed in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

" (c) The Company is in regular receipt of principal
repaymentand intereston the aboveloans.
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Vi.

Vii.

viii.

ix.

(d) There is no overdue amount of loans granted to
Companies, listed in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(e) The Company has not taken any loans, secured or
unsecured from companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control procedures commensurate with the size of the
company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of
inventories & fixed assets and payment for expenses and
for sale of goods and services. During the course of our
audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to
correct major weaknesses in the internal control system.

a) Accordingtotheinformationand explanations givento
us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of
contracts orarrangements that need to be entered in to
the register maintained under section 301 of the Act
have beensoentered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements exceeding
. 5 lakhs each have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at
therelevanttime.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public covered under section 58A and 58AA of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed thereunder.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating
to materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by
the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under
clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209 of the Act and
we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
accountsand records have been made and maintained.

(@) Accordingtotheinformationand explanations given to
us and the records of the company, in our opinion, the
Company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities, undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-
tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,
cess to the extent applicable and other material
statutory dues applicabletoit.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us,

no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income tax,
Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty, Excise
Duty and cess were in arrears, as at 31st of March, 2013 fora
period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c) Disputed Central Excise and Sales tax aggregating %. 24.23
million have not been deposited since matters are pending
with relevant forum asindicated below:

Xi.

Xii.

The Company does not have any accumulated loss atthe
end of the financial year and has not incurred cash loss
during the financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or
debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debenturesand other securities/investments.

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013
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Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi /mutual benefit
fund/society. Therefore, the Para 4(xiii) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) is not
applicable tothe Company.

In our opinion, the Company is notdealingin ortradingin
Shares, securities, debentures, mutual funds and other
Investments. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xiii)
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 and
Companies (Auditor's Report) (Amendment) Order 2004
arenotapplicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the terms and conditions, on which the
Company has given guarantee for the loan taken by other
Company from a bank or financial institution is not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The Company has not obtained any long term loans
during theyear under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of
the Company as at 31st March, 2013, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
terminvestmentby the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares to parties and companies covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the
year under audit.

The Company has not raised any money by public issue
duringtheyear.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to
theinformation and explanations given to us, no material
fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the management.

For RJC Associates
Regn.No.: 0034965
Chartered Accountants

R.Jayachandran
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR
Managing Director Director

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013

R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

[Z.In Million]

" As per our report of even date"

For RJC ASSOCIATES
Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. JAYACHANDRAN
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR
Managing Director Director

Place : Coimbatore R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM
Date :09/05/2013 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

[Z.In Million]

" As per our report of even date"

For RJC ASSOCIATES
Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. JAYACHANDRAN
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.1)

1.2)

1.3)

1.4)

Basis for preparation of Financial Statements

The Company follows accrual method of Accounting.
The financial statements have been prepared under
the Historical Cost Convention and on the basis of
going concern and in accordance with the Accounting
Standards referred to in the Section 211 (3C) of the
Companies Act 1956, whereverapplicable.

Inventories

Inventories have been valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories has been
assigned using the weighted average costformula.

at FIFO - Net of CENVAT
and VAT

a) Purchased items -

Purchase cost net of
CENVAT and VAT plus
proportionate
overheads

b) Work-in-Progress -

¢) Manufactured items
at Factory

at cost excluding selling
overheads and VAT.

d) Traded Items - atcost and net of VAT.

at cost including
applicable
taxes and duties.

e) Inventory at -
Branches/Foreign
Branches

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on Straight line basis for Plant
& Machinery, Vehicles and Computers and on Written
Down Value basis for other assets. Rates prescribed
under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 are
adopted except for Computers which are depreciated
over a period of 3 years at the rate of 33.33% per
annum.

Revenue Recognition

Sales : Sales, which includes excise duty, but excludes
VAT, is recognised at the time of shipment of goods
from plant or from stock points.

Royalty: Royalty is recognised on accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the relevant Agreement.

Rent: Rental income is recognised on accrual basis in
accordance with terms of respective rentagreements.

Interest: Interest is recognised on accrual basis taking
into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Dividend : Dividend is recognised and accounted
whentherighttodividendis established.

1.5)

a)

1.6)

1.7)

1.8)
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost of
acquisition, which includes all taxes, duties and other
direct expenses incurred up to the stage of
commissioning of the asset, net of CENVAT and VAT,
whereverapplicable.

Capital work-in-progress:

Capital work-in-progress consisting of assets under
construction, erection and commissioning are valued
atcostincurred up to the date of Balance Sheet.

An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with
Accounting Standard 28 on "Impairment of Asset",
when at Balance Sheet date there are indications of
impairment and the carrying amount of the Asset, or
where applicable the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the asset's net selling price and value in use).
The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount and the reduction is recognized as an
impairment lossinthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. For transactions settled within the year,
exchange variance is charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss. Outstanding liabilities and assets are restated
at exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year. The
resultant exchange variances are recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss prepared for the year on a
net off basis.

Investments

Long term investments are valued at cost and short
term investments are valued at cost or fair value
whicheverislower.

Employee Benefits

a) Provident Fund: Provident Fund contribution is as
per the rates prescribed by the Employees
Provident Fund Act 1952 and the same is charged to
revenueaccount.

b) Superannuation: Company has an arrangement
with Life Insurance Corporation of India for
providing Superannuation benefits to employees



ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013

1.9)

1.10)

eligible as per Company's Rules. Company's
contribution to the Superannuation Fund is
calculated as per agreed terms and provided in the
accounts.

¢) Leave Salary: Liability in respect of encashment of
accumulated leave is provided based on actuarial
valuation.

d) Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit
plan forthe payment of post employment benefits
for its employees in the form of Gratuity fund
scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of
India. The expenditure are recognized based on the
present value of obligation as determined in
accordance with AS-150on"Employee Benefits”.

e) Othershort term employee benefits: All the other
short term employee benefits such as profit share,
performance pay, etc are measured and provided
onaccrual basis.

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costincludes:

a) Interest and Commitment charges on bank
borrowings and other short term and long term
borrowings.

b) Amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

¢) Finance chargesinrespect of assets acquired under
financeleases orunderother similararrangements.

d) Exchange difference arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
anadjustmenttointerest costs.

Segment Reporting:

Segment information for reportable segments is
prepared in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing the financial statements of the
company asawhole. Costs thatare directly attributable
to be business segments are charged to the respective
segments. Unallocated income/expenditure include
general corporate income/expenditure which are not
allocabletoany business segment.
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1.11)

1.12)

1.13)

1.14)

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax liabilities/assets are accounted for in
respect of all timing differences, as per (AS)22.

Research & Development Expenses:

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development
are charged offin the yearin which they areincurred.

Fixed Assets purchased for the purpose of research and
development are depreciated as per the Company's
policy stated above.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition
and are amortised over a period of five years or its legal/
usefullife whicheverisless.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities &
Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheetdate.

Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources
isremote.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
inthefinancial statements.
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Note: Figures within brackets denote Cash outflow.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR
Managing Director Director

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013

R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

[Z. In Million]

" As per our report of even date"

For RJC ASSOCIATES
Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. JAYACHANDRAN
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ELGI EQUIPMENTS
LIMITED.

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED("the Company"),
and its subsidiaries and joint venture Companies;
hereinafter referred to as "the Group" (refer Note No. 29 &
30 to the attached consolidated financial statements)
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31,2013, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, which we have
signed under reference to thisreport.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company's Management is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the Accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whetherduetofraud orerror.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013
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5. We did not audit the financial statements of following

Subsidiary Companies viz,, M/s. Elgi Gulf FZE, M/s. Elgi
Equipments (Zhejiang) Limited (China), M/s. Elgi
Compressors Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., (China), M/s. SAS
Belair (France), M/s. Elgi Compressores DO BRASIL
IMP.E.EXP. Ltda, M/s. Elgi Australia Pty Ltd., M/s. Elgi
Compressors ltaly Spa, M/s. Rotair Spa Italy, M/s. Elgi
Compressors USA Inc.,, M/s. Patton’s Inc., M/s. Patton’s
Medical LLC (USA), and a joint venture company M/s. Elgi
Sauer Compressors Ltd., included in the consolidated
financial statements, for the year then ended. These
financial statements and other financial information have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements to the extent they have been derived
from such financial statements is based solely on the report
of such other auditors. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis forouraudit opinion.

Opinion

6. We report that the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared by the Company's Management in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard
(AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, Accounting
Standard (AS) 23 - Accounting for investments in
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements, and
Accounting Standard (AS) 27 - Financial Reporting of
Interests in Joint Ventures notified Under section 211 (3C)
ofthe Companies Act, 1956

. Based on ourauditand on consideration of reports of other

auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the components of the Group as
referred to in paragraph 5 above, and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us,
in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally acceptedin India:

(@) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the
state of affairs of the Group asat March 31,2013

(b) in the case of the Consolidated Statement Profit and
Loss, of the profit for the yearended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
of the cash flows for the yearended on that date.

For RJC Associates
Regn.No. : 0034965
Chartered Accountants

R.Jayachandran
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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The accompanying notes are an integeral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR
Managing Director Director

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013

R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Z.In Million]

" As per our report of even date"

For RJC ASSOCIATES
Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. JAYACHANDRAN
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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The accompanying notes are an integeral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR
Managing Director Director

Place : Coimbatore
Date :09/05/2013

R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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" As per our report of even date"

For RJC ASSOCIATES
Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. JAYACHANDRAN
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Consolidated Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss

1.1

1.2

Basis of Accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis
following the historical cost convention in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP") and in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies
(Accounting standards) Rules, 2006, prescribed by the
Central Government.

The accounts of the all Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
have been prepared in compliance with the
Accounting standards as specified in the Companies
(Accounting standards) Rules, 2006, prescribed by the
Central Government, and have been prepared in
compliance with the local laws and applicable
Accounting Standards.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Elgi
Equipments Limited ("the Company") and its
subsidiary companies. The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on the following
basis.

i. The financial statement of the Company and its
Subsidiary Companies are combined on line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of
like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions resulting in
unrealized profit or losses in accordance with the
Accounting Standard (AS) -21 "Consolidated
Financial Statements" issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

ii. Investments in Joint Ventures are accounted for
by using the proportionate consolidation method
laid down in Accounting Standard (AS) - 27 on
"Financial Reporting of interests in Joint
ventures". Inter-Company transactions and
balances are eliminated to the extent of the
Company's interest in the joint venture. For the
purpose of consolidation, financial statements of
the subsidiaries are drawn up to and as on 31st
March 2013.
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1.3

1.4

iii. As far as possible, the Consolidated Financial
Statements are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other
eventsin similar circumstances and are presented
in the same manner as the Company's Separate
financial Statements.

iv. Foreign Currency Translation

Indian Rupees is the reporting currency for the
Group. However, the local currency of overseas
Subsidiaries is different from the reporting
currency of the Group. All the overseas
subsidiaries have been classified as non-integral
operations according to Accounting Standard 11.
In respect of overseas subsidiaries, all the assets
and liabilities are translated using exchange rate
prevailing at the Balance sheet date. Revenue,
cost and expense are translated using average
exchange rates of the foreign currency and the
resultant gain/loss have been disclosed as
“Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”.

v. Intangibleassetsand Amortisation

In case of parentand its Subsidiaries, expenditure
towards intangible assets up to 31st March 2013
in the book of Subsidiaries are expensed out as
revenue expenditure and are being amortized
over a period of time (Maximum five Years) in the
Consolidated Financial Statements depending
upon the nature of the expenditure and
evaluation of future benefits there from.

Uniform Accounting Policies

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Elgi
Equipments Limited and its subsidiaries and joint
venture have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other
eventsin similar circumstances.

Investments other than in subsidiaries have been
accounted as per Accounting Standard 13 on
Accounting for Investments.

Other Significant Accounting Policies
These are set out under “Notes on Accounts” as given

in the Unconsolidated Financial Statements of Elgi
Equipmentsand its Subsidiaries.
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29. The Subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are:

30

31

32

Joint Venture Company
Elgi Sauer Compressors Limited India 26% 31/03/2013 -

The value of Investments made in wholly owned Subsidiary Companies and in the joint venture have been accounted in
compliance with the Accounting Standards AS-21 & AS-27.

Other notesforming partof accounts
These are set at in and under schedules and notes forming part of the accounts for the year ended 31/03/2013 as given

in unconsolidated Financial Statements of Elgi Equipments Limited and its Subsidiaries.

The annual accounts of the above Subsidiary Companies are available for inspection by any shareholder at the Registered
Office of the Holding and Subsidiary Companies.
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Note: Figures within brackets denote Cash outflow.

For and on behalf of the Board " As per our report of even date"

JAIRAM VARADARAJ N. MOHAN NAMBIAR For RJC ASSOCIATES
Managing Director Director Regn. No. : 003496S
Chartered Accountants

Place : Coimbatore R. SYAM KUMAR S. SRIRAM R. JAYACHANDRAN
Date :09/05/2013 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Partner

Membership No. 021848
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Dear Shareholders

ATS ELGI LIMITED

Your directors are pleased to submit the 6th Annual report with the Audited Annual Accounts of the company for the year ended

31st March, 2013.

(%. In Million)

Performancefortheyear

The performance of the Company is tightly interlinked with the
performance of the automotive industry. Passenger car sales
growth was on a downward trend since the start of the financial
year except for a brief respite during October, ultimately resulting
in the first decline in annual car sales in a decade. Consequently
thisresulted in an overall reduction in activation of new dealerships
and in turn reduced demand for garage equipment. Despite the
tough market conditions the business grew due to increased
market share in new garages, increased revenue from other
industry segments, introduction of new products and continuous
expansion and focus on after sales service. The business also
expanded its range of products and share in the growing
commercial vehicles segment.

FuturePlans

The passenger car market growth is expected to be flat to
marginally higher in the year 2013-14 and the overall industry
sentiment continues to be weak. Growth opportunities for the
business lies in workshop expansions and new garage
establishments by Original Equipments Manufacturers (OEMs)
who have entered the country in recent years with their aggressive
new modellaunch plans.

Industry estimates suggest volume growth in commercial vehicles
would be driven by Light Commercial Vehicles which mainly
depend on intra-city movement of mostly consumer non-
discretionary items and rural taxis. Since the Company's thrust area
is on this segment, the business may not be impacted much due to
vagaries of theeconomy.

International

International business has grown by 18% over the previous year.
During the past year most major markets where the Company
exports its products have been affected by political uncertainty or
poor economic growth. While the situation is expected to
continue into the future, international business development will
focus on introduction of new products in various markets in the
comingyearto helpaugmentsales.

Dividend
In order to conserve internal resources the Directors do not
recommend any dividend for the financial year 2012-13.

Directors

Mr. Harjeet Singh Wahan was elevated as Non-Executive
Vice-Chairman of the Company with effect from 14/05/2012 from
the position of Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Ramesh Ponnuswami was appointed as an Additional Director
andas Managing Director of the Company on 14/05/2012.
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Mr. Ramprasad Director of your Company retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself
forreappointment. Your Directors recommend his re appointment.

Statutory Auditors
The Auditors M/s. RJC Associates, Chartered Accountants retire at

the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for
reappointment.

Cost Auditor

Approval of the Government of India through the Ministry of
Company Affairs was granted for the appointment of
Dr. G.L.Sankaran as the Cost Auditor of your Company for the
financial yearended 31stMarch 2013.

Fixed Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
duringtheyear.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Interms of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board
of Directors confirms;

. thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanationrelating to material departures;

Il that the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as on 31st
March, 2013 and of the profit of the company for the year
ended onthatdate.

lll. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and otherirregularities.

IV. that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a
"going concern"basis.

Acknowledgements

The Board appreciates the continued support rendered by
Customers, suppliers, dealers, banks, financial institution, and
investors and the faith reposed by the shareholders of the
company.
The Board also thanks the employees for their dedicated and
sincere services.

Forand on behalf of the Board

JAIRAMVARADARA)J
Chairman

Coimbatore
09/05/2013
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Annexure to the Directors' Report

I. Statement containing particulars pursuant to the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the Directors' Report.

>

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Paint Booth Blower motor changed from15HP to 10HP along with Auto cut-off provision.
Replacingtheair circulatorinto Ceiling Fansinfine product assembly area.

Auto water level cut-off for water pumps.

Replacing conventional tube lightsin to LED tube lights for street lights and in office areas.

Old compressors replaced with new generation screw compressor of better efficiency infine product assembly area.

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

Under chassis washer released for production in Mar'13. The synchronization of this unit with our Auto Car washer minimized the
washing time and consumes very less water compared to conventional washing.

Preparatory Station has been designed and developed for Body Shop application, the proto unit under validation and expected to
release for production by Jul'13

New Geneneration 2D Wheel aligner has been developed with new aesthetic, compact & light weight construction. Proto under
validation and expected to release for production by Sep'13.

C. ForeignExchange Earningsand outgo are givenin the notesforming part of accounts. Kindly refer the same.

I. Statement annexed to Director’s Report showing the names and other particulars of every employee of the company
pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975.

* Remuneration for the part of the financial year 2012-13

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Coimbatore JAIRAM VARADARAJ
Date : 09/05/2013 Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ATS ELGI LIMITED

ReportontheFinancial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
ATS ELGI LIMITED("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2013, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, which we have signed
underreference to thisreport.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company's Management is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in
sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
("the Act"). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.

5.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Actin the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceptedinIndia:

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 09/05/2013
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(@) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs
ofthe CompanyasatMarch 31,2013

(b) inthe case of the statement of Profit and Loss of the
profitforthe yearended on thatdate;and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows forthe yearended on that date.

Report on OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,

2003, as amended by 'the Companies(Auditor's Report)
(Amendment) Order 2004' ("the Order") issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of
section 227 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
ofthe Order.

8. Asrequired bySection227(3) ofthe Act, wereport that:

(@). we have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b). inouropinion proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;[and proper
returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have
beenreceived from branches notvisited by us];

(c). the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account [and with the
returns received from branches not visited by us];

(d). in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(e). on the basis of written representations received from
the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(f). Since the Central Government has not issued any
notification as to the rate at which the cess is to be
paid under section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956
nor has it issued any Rules under the said section,
prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be
paid, no cessis due and payable by the Company.

For RJC Associates
Regn. No.: 003496S
Chartered Accountants

R. Jayachandran
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 7 of our Report of even date to the members of
ATS Elgi Limited on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) All the assets have been physically verified by the
management during the period. No material discrepancies

were noticed on such verification.

(c) No substantial part of fixed assets were disposed off during
the period, hence it will not have any effect on the going
concernassumptions.

(@) Theinventory has been physically verified during the period
by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of
verificationis reasonable.

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the company and the
nature of its business.

() On the basis of our examination of the records of inventory,
we are of the opinion that the company is maintaining
proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans secured or
unsecured to/from companies, firms or other parties, which are
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets and
with regard to the sale of goods and services. During the course of
our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct
major weaknessesininternal control system.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or
arrangements that need to be entered into the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
have been soentered.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations givento us, the transactions made in pursuance
of contracts or arrangements exceeding rupees five lakh each
have been made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and
hence provisions of para ofthe said orderare notapplicable.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to
materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by the
Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government
forthe maintenance of cost records under section 209 (1) (d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and we are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained.

(@) According to the information and explanation given to us
and records examined by us, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory
duesapplicabletoit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax,

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 09/05/2013

Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty
and Cess were in arrears, asat 31st March 2013 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable.

Disputed Sales Tax aggregating %. 8.651 million have not
been deposited since matters are pending with relevant
forumasindicated below:
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XI.

XIL.

XIll.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIL.

XVIIL

XIX.

XX.

XXI.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the
end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses
during the period covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

The Company has not taken any loans from Financial
Institutions/Banks or has not issued any debentures during
the period.

The Company has notgranted any loans and advances on the
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
othersecurities.

The Company is not a chit fund, nidhi, mutual benefit fund or
asociety, therefore the provision of Para 4(xiii) of the order are
notapplicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in
shares, securities, debentures and other investments.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the order are
notapplicable tothe Company.

In our opinion, the Company has not given any guarantee for
any loans taken by any other Companies from Banks or
Financial Institutions.

The Company has not obtained any long term loan during
the period underaudit.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been usedforlong-terminvestment.

The Company has not made any preferential allotments of
shares to the parties and companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
and hence provisions of Clause (xviii) of para 4 of the order
arenotapplicable.

The Company has not issued any debentures, during the
period.

During the period covered by our audit, the Company has
not raised any money by way of public issue.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanation given to us, no material fraud on
or by the Company, was noticed or reported during the
period.

For RJC Associates
Regn. No.: 0034965
Chartered Accountants

R. Jayachandran
Partner
Membership No. 021848
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board "As per our report of even date”

JAIRAM VARADARAJ RAMESH PONNUSWAMI For RJCASSOCIATES
Chairman Managing Director Chartered Accountants
Regn.N0.:.0034965

Place : Coimbatore R.JAYACHANDRAN
Date :09/05/2013 Partner

Membership No. 021848
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Place : Coimbatore R.JAYACHANDRAN
Date :09/05/2013 Partner
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis for preparation of Financial Statements

The Company follows accrual method of accounting. The
financial statements have been prepared under the Historical
cost convention on the basis of a going concern and in
accordance with the accounting standards referred to in the
Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act 1956, wherever
applicable.

1.2 Inventories

Inventories have been valued atlower of costand net realisable
value. The cost of inventories has been assigned using the
weighted average costformula.

a) Purchased items - at FIFO Net of CENVAT and VAT

b) Work-in-progress - purchase cost net of CENVAT

and VAT plus proportionate
overheads

¢) Manufactured items - at cost excluding selling

at Factory overheads and VAT

d) Traded items - at cost and net of VAT

e) Inventoryitemsat - atcostincluding applicable
Branches/ Foreign taxes and duties.
Branches

1.3 Depreciation

Depreciations is charged on Straight line basis for Plant &
Machinery, Vehicles and Computers and on Written Down
Value basis for other assets. Rates prescribed under Schedule
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 are adopted except for
Computers which are depreciated over a period of 3 years at
therate of 33.33% perannum.

1.4 Revenue recognition
Sales:

Sales, which includes excise duty, but excludes VAT is
recognised at the time of shipment of goods from plant or from
stock points.

Interest:

Interest is recognised on accrual basis on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.
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1.5 Fixed Assets

a) Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost of acquisition,
which includes all taxes, duties and other direct expenses
incurred upto the stage of commissioning of the asset, net
of CENVAT and VAT, wherever applicable

b) Capital work in progress consisting of assets under
construction, erection and commissioning are valued at
costincurred upto the date of Balance Sheet.

c) An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with
Accounting Standard 28 on “Impairment of Assets”, when
at balance sheet date there are indications of impairment
and the carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
asset’s net selling price and value is use ) , the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the
reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the Profit
and Loss Account.

1.6 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction. For transactions
settled within the year, exchange variance is charged to Profit
and Loss account. Outstanding liabilities and assets are
restated at exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year. The
resultant exchange variances are accounted as income or
expenses,on a net-off basis.

1.7 Employee Benefits

a) Provident Fund: Provident Fund contribution is as per the
rates prescribed by the Employees Provident Fund Act
1952 and the same is charged to revenue
account.

b) Superannuation: The Company has an arrangement with
Life Insurance Corporation of India for providing
Superannuation benefits to employees eligible as per
Company’s Rules. Company’s contribution to the
Superannuation Fund is calculated as per agreed terms
and provided forin the accounts.

c) Leave Salary : Liability in respect of encashment of
accumulated leave is provided based on actuarial
valuation.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013

d) Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit plan
for the payment of post employment benefits for its
employees in the form of gratuity fund scheme managed
by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The expense is
recognized based on the present value of obligation
determined in accordance with AS-15 (R) on “Employee
Benefits”.

e) Other Short term employee benefits : All the other short
term employee benefits such as profit share, performance
pay, etc are measured and provided on accrual basis.

1.8 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing cost includes:

a) Interest and Commitment charges on bank borrowings
and othershorttermandlong term borrowings.

b) Amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
thearrangement of borrowings.

c) Finance charges in respect of assets acquired under
financeleases or under other similararrangements.

d) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustmenttointerest costs.

1.9 Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax liabilities / assets are accounted for in respect of
all timing differences, as per AS-22
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1.10 Research & Development Expenses:

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development are
charged offintheyearin which they are incurred.

Fixed Assets purchased for the purpose of research and
development are depreciated as per the Company's policy
stated above.

1.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition and are
amortized over a period of five years or its legal/ useful life
whicheveris less.

1.12  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities &
Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheetdate.

Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the
financial statements.
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22 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
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25 Details of disclosure as required under AS15 in respect of defined benefit plan ( Gratuity )
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Note : Figures within bracket denote Cash Outflow

For and on behalf of the Board "As per our report of even date”

JAIRAM VARADARAJ RAMESH PONNUSWAMI For RJC ASSOCIATES
Chairman Managing Director Chartered Accountants
Regn.N0..0034965

Place : Coimbatore R.JAYACHANDRAN
Date :09/05/2013 Partner

Membership No. 021848




Factory & Registered Office, Subsidiary Offices, Branch Offices and Overseas Offices

Branch offices
Ahmedabad

Sanand

Bangalore
Bhopal
Chennai
Coimbatore
Hyderabad
Jaipur

Kochi
Kolkata

Mumbai
New Delhi
Pune

Tiruchengode

Overseas Offices

Bangladesh
Srilanka
Thailand

Malaysia

"ELGI HOUSE" 2, Mill Officer's Colony, Behind La-Gajjar Chambers, (Old Reserve Bank), Opp. Times of India, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009. Ph: (91-79) 26583736, 26581274, Fax : (91-79) 26587683. E-mail : enquiry@elgi.com

Plot No. 193/194, Natraj Industrial Estate, Vasana-lyava (T.K.), Sanand District, Ahmedabad - 382170. (Gujarat) Ph:2717-284109.

15,16 Richmond Road (Adjacent to Citi Bank)Bangalore - 560 025. Ph: (91-80) 22240674, 22247515, 22220296, 22122479
Fax: (91-80) 22293274, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

Plot No.4, Vaibhav Complex, Major Shopping Centre, Zone 1, M.P. Nagar, Bhopal - 462 011. Ph: (91-755) 2578281, 2578317,4273317
Fax: (91-755) 2578289, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

S4-Il Floor, Apollo Dubai Plaza, No-100, Mahalingapuram Main Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600034
Ph:(91-44) 28172599 & 28179500, Fax (91-44) 28174699, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

1st Floor, #622-A, Near ELGI industrial Complex, Trichy Road, Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641 005.
Ph: (91-422) 2589555 Fax: (91-422)2573697. E-mail : enquiry@elgi.com

H.NO:12-13-188, Il nd Floor, Street No.2, Taranaka, Hyderabad - 500017. Ph: (91-40) 27000435,27000437,27000439, 27000431
Tele Fax: (91-40) 27000438, E-mail : enquiry@elgi.com

602, 6th Floor, Diamond Tower, Purani Chungi, Ajmer Road, Jaipur - 302 021. Ph: (91-141) 2970120 Fax: (91-141) 2970121
Email: enquiry@elgi.com

#39/3973, Pallimukku, M.G.Road, Kochi - 682016. Ph: (91-484) 2360155 Fax: (91-484) 2351904, E- mail: enquiry@elgi.com

Space No.502, Block - C, 5th Foor,, Axis Mall Action Area - IC, New Town, Premises No.CF-9, Kolkatta - 700 156
Ph: (91-33) 2324-4270/2324-4271 Fax: (91-33) 2324-4272, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

Marol Co-op Industrial Estate Ltd. Plot No.48, Mathurdas Vassanji Road, Near Sakinaka, Andheri(East), Mumbai - 400 059
Ph: (91-22) 42161000 Fax: (91-22) 28591601, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

23, Shivaji Marg, Near Karampura, Opp. DCM, New Delhi- 110 015. Ph: (91-11) 25928593, 25928095 , 25153644

Fax: (91-11) 25459375, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

White House, Ground Floor, 388-A, 1/2240, Mumbai-Pune Road, Opp. Sandvik(Asia), Dapodi, Phugewadi, Pune - 411 012
Ph: (91-20) 30635454, 30635455 Fax: (91-20) 30635456, E-mail: enquiry@elgi.com

4/2, Nandhini Complex, 1st Floor, Velur Road, Tiruchengode - 637211. Ph: (91-4288) 257137Fax: (91-4288) 257693
Email: enquiry@elgi.com

Elgi Equipments Ltd., Sonartori Tower (15 & 16 Floor), No.12, Biponon C/A, Sonargon Road, Dhaka- 1000
Ph: 880 - 9671453 - 65, Fax: 880 - 2 - 8616148, Email: nazim@elgi.com

S.G. Arcade, 2nd Floor, No.441, Sri Sangaraja Mawatha, Colombo-10, Ph: 00 - 94 -11 - 2392425, Fax : 00 - 94 - 11 - 4737412
Email: elgisupport@sinet.lk

Elgi Equipment's Ltd., 223/61 Country Complex A 14th Floor, Sanphawut Road, Bangna Bangkok -10260.
Email (for sales) : siddharth@elgi.com, (for after sales) : piyavuthl@elgi.com Toll - Free No. (Thailand) - 001800-13201-2905

Elgi Equipments (M) SDN. BHP, Unit D-3A-4, Level 4, Block D, Setia Walk Persiaran Wawasan, Pusat Bandar Puchonj,47160 Puchonj
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia. Toll free number : 1800 - 813 - 1777 Web : www.malaysia.elgi.com

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (Overseas)

China

Middle East

Brazil

France

Australia

Italy

USA

Indonesia

Elgi Equipments (ZheJiang) Limited, No. 4 Building, No.466 Yunhai Road JiaXing, ZheJiang, P.R. China - 314001 .
Ph:+86 (0) 563 82551120, 82551133, 82551122, 008613818052560 Fax:+ 86 (0) 563 82551115 Email: enquiry.cn@elgi.com

Elgi Compressors Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., Room 912 No. 8 &9 Lane 1500, South Lianhua Road, Min Hang District,
Shanghai, P.R. China Postal Code : 201108, Ph : + 86 (0) 21 33581191, 008613818052560, Fax:+ 86 (0)21 33581190,
Email: enquiry.cn@elgi.com

Elgi Gulf (FZE), P.O. Box: 120695, Q4-081, SAIF Zone, Sharjah, U.A.E. Ph: +971 6 557 9970, Fax: + 9716 557 9980
Mobile : + 971 50 457 6470 Email : gulfenquiry@elgi.com

Elgi Compressores Do Brasil Importadora e Exportadora Ltda., Avenida Emilio Checchinato, 4195 - B: Cep : 13295 - 000,
Bairro:Sao Roque da Chave: [tupeva - SP, Brazil. Email: marcelo@elgi.com.br

SAS Belair, Zone Espace leaders; 156 rue de Moutti-Sud: 74540 Alby Sur Cheran, France. Ph: 04 50 68 20 57 Fax: 04 50 68 22 61
Email : dlelievre@belair.fr

Elgi Equipments Australia Pty Ltd.,1/35 Steel Place, Morningside QLD —4170 Ph: +617 31060589 Mob : +61 418335939
Email : vivp@elgi.com.au Toll - Free No. (Australia) - 1800 813 1777

ELGI Compressors Italy S.r.l., Rome(RM), Via Del Babuino 51,00187

ROTAIR Spa, Via Bernezzo 67, 12023 Caraglio (CN), Italy. Ph : +39 0171619676 Fax:+39 0171619677
E-mail : info@rotairspa.com

Elgi Compressors USA Inc., 2711, Counterville Road, Suite 400, City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware - 19808.
Patton's Inc. & Patton's Medical LLC - 3201, South Boulevard, Charlotte, NC 28209, USA.
PT ELGI Equipments Indonesia, Kawasan Pergudangan, BIZPARK Commercial Estate, Pulogadung JI. Raya Bekai KM 21,

5 Blok A3 No. 12, Kel. Rawa Terate, Kec. Cakung, Pulogadung Jakarta Timur 13920. Phone : +62 - 21 — 46822216, 46827388
Email (for sales) nitins@elgi.com, (for aftersales) : augustin@elgi.com, Toll - free No. (Indonesia) — 0804-111-3544
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Factory & Registered Office, Subsidiary Offices, Branch Offices and Overseas Offices

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (DOMESTIC)

ATS ELGI LIMITED

Private Industrial Estate, Kurichy, Coimbatore - 641 021, India
Ph:+91-422-2589999, 2672201 - 3 Fax : + 91 - 422 - 2589800
E-mail : enquiry@ats-elgi.com Web: www.ats-elgi.com

ADISONS PRECISION INSTRUMENTS MFG. CO. LIMITED
Elgi Indusrial Complex, Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641005.

Joint Venture

ELGI SAUER COMPRESSORS LIMITED

Elgi Industrial Complex 111, Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641 005 India
Ph:+91-422-2589555,2589634, 2589510 Fax: +91 - 422 - 2573697
Email : info@elgisauer.com Web: www.elgisauer.com

Factory & Registered Office

ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641005, India

Ph:+91-422-2589555 Fax: + 91-422- 2573697, + 91 - 422 - 2589401 (for international markets)
E-mail : enquiry@elgi.com Web: www.elgi.com

GLOBAL SUPPORT CENTRE

2/66 & 2/67 A, Avinashi Main Road, Chinniyampalayam, Coimbatore - 641062, India
Ph:+91-422-2625868, 2625869, Fax : + 91 - 422 - 2625985

Division
PRESSURE VESSEL DIVISION, 1473 - Trichy Road, Coimbatore - 641018 -

Ph: 0422 -2589777, Email : enquiry@elgi.com

Toll Free Customer Care (in India) : 1800 - 425 - 3544
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National Electronic Clearing Service
(NECS Mandate Form)

(For Shares held in Physical Form)

1. First Shareholder's Name

2. Shareholders’ Folio No.

3. Particulars of Bank Account :
a) BankName

b) Branch Name

c) Account No.

d) Account Type . SB Current Cash Credit
(tick the correct box)

e) Ledgerfolio no. of the
Bank A/c (if appearing on
the cheque book)

f) 9 Digit code No. of the
Bank & Branch appearing
on the MICR cheque
issued by the bank

Important :

1. Please attach the photocopy of a cheque of a blank cancelled cheque issued by
your Bank relating to your above account for verifying the accuracy of the code
numbers.

2. |, hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the
transaction is delayed or not effected at all for reasons of incomplete or incorrect
information, lwould not hold the Company responsible.

Date: Signature of First Shareholder
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EL UL
ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641 005, Tel: +91-422-2589555 Fax: +91-422-2573697
E-mail: investor@elgi.com Visit us at: www.elgi.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
| hereby record my attendance at the 53 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING held on Thursday, August 1, 2013 at 4.30 pm at
ARDRA, No. 9, North Huzur Road, Coimbatore-641018.

Signature of the Member Signature of the Proxy
Name of the Member Name of the Proxy
Folio No. / Client ID. NO. ... NO. Of SNArES : e
Notes:

Please signthisattendance slipand hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the entrance of the meeting venue.

EL UL
ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641 005, Tel: +91-422-2589555 Fax: +91-422-2573697
E-mail: investor@elgi.com Visit us at: www.elgi.com

PROXY FORM
[/WV oooeeevvevvevvviereeseesese s8R
O ot eeeeee s sis s sss 1885885888888 being
member(s) of ELGIEQUIPMENTS LIMITED, hereby appoint SI/SMT .....vccccveeeenssiessssssssssssssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssees
OF ettt Or failiNG NIM /NI /ST SMT. o sssssse
OF s as my/our Proxy to attend and vote on my/our

behalf at the 53“ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING to be held on Thursday, August 1,2013 at4.30 pmand atany adjournment
thereof.

NO. Of ShAreS Neld ..o, ]
(Affix Re 1/-
Folio No. / Client ID N Signature fevenue
olio No./ Client O TP o L1 SEAMP) o
Signed this........eenns daY Of oo 2013
Notes:

1. TheProxyneed NOT be amember.

2. The Proxy Form signed across Re. 1/- revenue stamp should reach the Company's Registered Office at least 48 hours before
the commencement. of the meeting.
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ELGI EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

ELGI Industrial Complex, Trichy Road, Singanallur, Coimbatore - 641 005
Tel: 0422 - 2589555 | Fax: 0422 - 2573697 | Web: www.elgi.com | Email: investor@elgi.com
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: X Patton’s
<y e BELAIR ~L Fatton

COMPRESSEURS D’AIRR

@ Sauer Compressors @ _
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